MINUTES of the meeting of the **PLANNING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE** held at 10.30 am on 12 July 2017 at Ashcombe Suite, County Hall, Kingston upon Thames, Surrey KT1 2DN.

These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Committee at its meeting.

Members Present:

Mr Tim Hall (Chairman)
Mr Keith Taylor (Vice-Chairman)
Mr Edward Hawkins
Mr Stephen Cooksey
Mr Jeff Harris
Mrs Bernie Muir
Mrs Rose Thorn
Mr Graham Knight

Apologies:

Mr Ernest Mallett MBE Mrs Natalie Bramhall Mr Matt Furniss Dr Andrew Povey Mrs Penny Rivers

204/17 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS [Item 1]

Apologies for absence were received from Ernest Mallet, Natalie Bramhall, Matt Furniss, Andrew Povey and Penny Rivers. Graham Knight substituted for Matt Furniss.

205/17 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING [Item 2]

The Minutes were APPROVED as an accurate record of the previous meeting.

206/17 PETITIONS [Item 3]

There were none.

207/17 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME [Item 4]

There were none.

208/17 MEMBERS' QUESTION TIME [Item 5]

There were none.

209/17 DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS [Item 6]

There were none.

210/17 RU.17/0049 - THE HYTHE SCHOOL, THORPE ROAD, EGHAM, SURREY TW18 3HD [Item 8]

Officers:

Alex Sanders, Principal Planning Officer Caroline Smith, Transport Development Planning Manager Nancy El-Shatoury, Principal Solicitor

Key points raised during the discussion:

- Officers outlined the proposals for a single storey building to provide 6 classrooms and associated works. There were no objections, however, officers noted that there were some concerns raised by residents regarding potential disturbances from increased school traffic and congestion.
- 2. Members questioned the flooding risk and asked officers whether they were satisfied that the flooding management plan put forward by the applicant were sufficiently robust. Officers noted that there were sufficient provisions laid out in the application to mitigate flood risk, highlighting that the new building had been raised to increase the flood gap.
- 3. It was queried by Members whether there would be a significant issue caused by the increase in parking traffic. Officers stressed that there would be an increase in parking issues, but that the applicant was actively promoting the nationally endorsed scheme of "Park and Stride" to mitigate any potential parking issues that were resultant of this application.

Rose Thorn entered the meeting at 10.41am

4. Officers noted that the applicant was required to refresh its travel plan address potential parking issues. Members agreed that a provision should be added to the application that the school strongly adheres to a robust travel plan as part of the application to mitigate any parking issues.

The resolution of the Committee was unanimous.

RESOLVED:

That the application RU.17/0049 - The Hythe School, Thorpe Road, Egham, Surrey TW18 3HD be permitted subject to the conditions laid out in the report and with the addition of a provision recommending strong adherence to a robust travel plan to mitigate parking issues.

Actions/further information to be provided:

None.

211/17 SP17/00113/SCC - STANWELL RECYCLING, STANWELL QUARRY, STANWELL MOOR ROAD, STANWELL [Item 9]

Officers:

Dustin Lees, Senior Planning Officer Caroline Smith, Transport Development Planning Manager Alan Stones, Planning Development Team Manager Nancy El-Shatoury, Principal Solicitor

Two update sheets were provided for Members at the meeting, which are attached to the minutes. The meeting was adjourned at 11.51 for nine minutes to allow for Members to read the information given.

The Chairman resolved to combine the discussion of items 9 and 10 due to the interconnected nature of the proposals.

Key points raised during the discussion:

- Officers introduced the plan for the retention of an existing recycling operation on a site for the processing of construction and demolition waste and the restoration of the recycling site to agriculture. It was also highlighted that completion of the restoration of the site would take approximately 10 years, with a partial completion and public site access completed in approximately five years.
- 2. Officers noted that objections to the application were primarily relating to the length of time that the application was taking to complete. It was also noted that Spelthorne Borough Council issued a strong objection to the proposal based on the length of time taken to complete the proposal, the need to secure parkland and nature conservation restoration and the ensure there was public access created in areas referred to in the proposal. Officers stressed that, while there was frustration from the service with relation to the time taken to complete the project, the site could not be left unrestored and there was a requirement to complete the work to an appropriate standard.
- Officers explained that they would engage with Spelthorne Borough Council regarding the detailed and timed phased restoration plan to be secured by condition and that the 25-year Management Plan would be secured by a revised s106 legal agreement.
- 4. It was noted by officers that the recycling development was a temporary use of the land with the eventual aim of restoring and preserving the openness of the Green Belt area.
- 5. Members raised some concerns regarding the potential for Heathrow Airport expansion into the restored quarry area. Officers stressed that any interest expressed by Heathrow Airport into the site was provisional and that this did not guarantee expansion into the site. It was also noted that the potential for these plans should not outweigh the requirement to restore the area.
- 6. Members questioned the accountability of the applicant in proposal REF. SP17/00118/SCC and queried what accountability for non-compliance could be guaranteed after the failure to meet the conditions outlined in the

proposal ref: SP10/0594 in October 2011. Officers noted that future applications would have the requirement for conditions and detailed timescales to be submitted, but that there was no provision in place for financial penalties for non-compliance. It was, however, noted that the site would be regularly monitored and that enforcement action could be taken if the project was deemed to be non-compliant with required timescales.

- 7. Members questioned whether the work could be undertaken in a more timely fashion than currently outlined. Officers noted that the current metrics used by the applicant were accurate and that work would take the allotted 10 years to complete. It was stressed that an unrealistic timescale should not be employed in order to manage expectations and ensure the project was completed to a reasonable quality.
- 8. Officers noted that the site development outlined in the proposal offered significant benefits. While it was noted that there would be some disturbance from Heavy Goods Vehicles (HGVs), it was noted that there would be a progressive restoration of the site, which would mitigate this issue to some extent.

The Resolution of the Committee was unanimous

RESOLVED:

That the application is that planning application Ref. SP17/00113/SCC be permitted subject to conditions laid out in the report.

Actions/further information to be provided:

None.

212/17 SP17/00118/SCC - STANWELL QUARRY, STANWELL MOOR ROAD, STANWELL, SURREY TW19 6AB [Item 10]

Officers:

Dustin Lees, Senior Planning Officer Caroline Smith, Transport Development Planning Manager Alan Stones, Planning Development Team Manager Nancy El-Shatoury, Principal Solicitor

Key points raised during the discussion:

The Chairman resolved to combine the discussion of items 9 and 10 due to the interconnected nature of the proposals.

The resolution of the Committee was unanimous.

RESOLVED:

That the planning application Ref. SP17/00118/SCC is permitted subject to a revised s106 legal agreement and conditions outlined in the report.

Actions/Further information to be provided:

None

213/17 RE17/00931/CON - ST BEDES SCHOOL, 64 CARLTON ROAD, REDHILL, SURREY RH1 2LQ [Item 7]

Officers:

Sean Kelly, Senior Planning Officer Caroline Smith, Transport Development Planning Manager Alan Stones, Planning Development Team Manager Nancy El-Shatoury, Principal Solicitor

Key points raised during the discussion:

- Officers outlined the plan for a three storey extension to the existing main teaching block and a three storey extension to existing arts block to provide more teaching space; a one storey extension to front of main block to provide new main entrance, administrative office and storage space; one storey extension to existing dining hall; provision of new car parking spaces and cycle storage facilities; and associated external works.
- 2. Officers stressed that issues with relation to parking and congestion were addressed in an updated travel plan to alleviate these issues was being formulated as part of the proposal. Officers highlighted that the alleviation of concerns regarding parking and congestion brought up by the local Residents Association will be raised with the applicant to be added as a provision in the proposal.
- 3. It was noted by officers, following Member questioning, that the travel plan had was taking into account increased traffic from the additional school places.
- 4. Members queried what surface would be used to soften parking impact. Officers noted that a hard surface was proposed, and that the area in question did not demand the use of grasscrete.

The Resolution of the Committee was unanimous

RESOLVED:

That planning application RE17/00931/CON - St Bedes School, 64 Carlton Road, Redhill, Surrey RH1 2LQ be permitted subject to conditions outlined in the report.

Actions/Further information to be provided:

None

214/17 DATE OF NEXT MEETING [Item 11]

The date of the ne	xt meeting	was noted.
--------------------	------------	------------

Meeting closed at 12.03 pm		
	 Chairman	



Planning & Regulatory Committee 12 July 2017

Item No

8

UPDATE SHEET

SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL PROPOSAL RU.17/0049

DISTRICT(S) RUNNYMEDE BOROUGH COUNCIL

The Hythe School, Thorpe Road, Egham, Surrey TW18 3HD

The erection of a single storey building to provide 6 classrooms and associated works including the creation of a raised link canopy, external access steps and ramp and new pedestrian access from the north west of the site, in order to facilitate Phase 2 of the expansion from a 1FE to a 2FE Primary School.

RECOMMENDATION

Amend wording of condition 4 to the following:

The development hereby permitted shall have a finished floor level of 15.825 AOD or above.

Amend wording of condition 5 to the following:

The void created beneath the floor of the building hereby permitted shall be set at a level of 15.525AOD and at no time be used for the storage of equipment or materials, nor for any other use which might obstruct the passage of floodwater beneath the building in a flood event. The mesh security panels to protect the void shall measure 50x66mm.

Add new condition 14

Any walls or fencing constructed within or around the perimeter of the site shall be designed to be permeable to flood water and there shall be no raising of the existing ground levels on the site.

Add new reason 14

To ensure the development does not increase flood risk onsite or elsewhere by impede flood water flows or storage in accordance with Policy SV2 of the Runnymede Borough Local Plan Second Alteration 2001.



UPDATE SHEET

Planning Applications Refs. SP17/00113/SCC and SP17/00118/SCC

Stanwell Quarry, Stanwell Moor Road, Stanwell, Surrey TW19 6AB

Non-compliance with Conditions 1 and 2 of planning permission ref. SP10/0594 dated 26 October 2011 in order to extend the time taken for restoration until 26 October 2027 and to change the restoration and phasing plans previously approved (Ref. SP17/00118/SCC).

Retention of an existing recycling operation on a site of some 5.3ha for the processing of construction and demolition waste for the production of restoration materials for use in the former Stanwell Quarry and recycled aggregates for export for a period of 10 years with restoration of the recycling site to agriculture.

- 1. Members will note that the County Planning Authority (CPA) has not received a formal consultation response from Spelthorne Borough Council in relation to either of the subject planning applications.
- 2. However, the CPA did receive an email from Mr. Geoff Dawes (Principal Planning Officer) of Spelthorne Borough Council on 30 June 2017. This email is attached as **Annex A**.
- 3. Mr. Dawes complains that: (a) there has been little or no progress in restoring the mineral working since planning permission Ref. SP08/0337 was granted by Surrey County Council (SCC) in 2011, and that a further time extension would delay the public benefits of restoration; (b) the justification for continued operation of a recycling facility in this Green Belt location is tenuous; and (c) the benefits of restoration may not be deliverable in the context of the proposed expansion of Heathrow Airport.
- 4. The applicant has provided a response to Mr. Dawes' email which can be found at Annex B.
- 5. Officers have also considered the contents of Mr. Dawes' email and respond as follows:
- 6. Officers agree with Mr. Dawes that a further delay to the restoration of the quarry is disappointing in that it would inevitably delay the public benefits to arise from the same. However, this delay should be considered in the context of the characteristics of the quarry, national policy and guidance relating to sustainable waste management, and the compensation proposed by the applicant in respect of the delay.
- 7. In the absence of site-derived restoration materials, the materials necessary to complete restoration of the quarry would need to be sourced from some form of recycling operation undertaken on the quarry or elsewhere.
- 8. It would be contrary to Waste Hierarchy¹, which in England is both a guide to sustainable waste management and a legal requirement enshrined in law through the

¹ The hierarchy gives top priority to waste prevention, followed by preparing for re-use, then recycling, other types of recovery¹, and last of all disposal e.g. landfill.

Waste (England and Wales) Regulations 2011, to simply complete restoration of the quarry by landfilling available or imported inert waste which could otherwise be prepared for reuse, recovered, or recycled. Neither would it be acceptable to leave the quarry unrestored having regard to paragraph 144 of the National Planning Policy Framework² and the Surrey Minerals Core Strategy 2011 (MCS)³.

- 9. Since 2011 some 105,000m³ of suitable restoration material has been produced on the quarry by the existing recycling operation. This material has been used within the eastern and central parts of the quarry for restoration purposes. About 115,000m³ of suitable restoration material is still required to fully restore the quarry.
- 10. The applicant has explained that restoration of the quarry has been delayed as the existing recycling operation has been able to deliver higher rate of recycling than originally envisaged i.e. about 85% of imported waste has been recycled and exported from the quarry for reuse elsewhere.
- 11. Based on this rate of recycling, and the volume of suitable restoration material produced as a consequence, restoration of the quarry would be completed by 2027.
- 12. By way of compensation for the delay the applicant is offering increased public access, enhanced heritage and biodiversity value, and a 25-year management plan for 15ha (a 50% increase in area compared to previous management plan area) of the restored site. Officers consider that the proposed scheme, once realised, would offer much more benefit to the environment and local community than that previously approved. The applicant is also proposing to release parts of the restored quarry, predominantly the parkland garden area in the south, for public access within the next 5-years i.e. by 2022.
- 13. If planning permission is granted for an extended restoration period a condition would be imposed requiring the submission of a progressive restoration phasing plan with detailed timescales for each respective phase of the quarry. This would ensure that the applicant does what they have committed to and would allow the CPA to monitor progress of the restoration more effectively and enforce progressive restoration if necessary and expedient.
- 14. In addition to facilitating restoration of the quarry, albeit at a slower pace than originally anticipated, the existing recycling facility makes a valuable contribution to achieving the 0.9mtpa MCS target for recycled aggregates by 2026. Without the facility it will be difficult to achieve this target as recognised by SCC's 2016 Local Aggregates Assessment⁴.
- 15. Given its location adjacent to Heathrow Airport, the majority of waste imported to the quarry is from the airport and about half of the resulting recycled material is reused at the airport with the remaining half used at other sites including works relating to the M3 motorway and west London infrastructure projects. For these reasons, amongst others, Officers consider the quarry to be a suitable and sustainable location for a temporary recycling facility.

² The CPA should provide for restoration and aftercare at the earliest opportunity to be carried out to high environmental standards.

Policies MC17 (Restoring Mineral Workings) and MC18 (Restoration and Enhancement)

⁴ See paragraph 4.4.4 of Surrey County Council's Local Aggregates Assessment dated December 2016

- 16. Officers are aware of the proposed plans for the expansion of Heathrow Airport and that these may impact upon the quarry. However, these plans are at draft stage and are therefore likely to change given that they are yet to undergo formal consultation/evaluation processes. Accordingly, there is considerable uncertainty surrounding the expansion of the airport and there is no clear timetable for the same. Any formal proposal by Heathrow Airport would need to take account of the restored quarry and the benefits it offers to the environment and the local community.
- 17. Having regard to the above, Officers maintain their recommendations to permit planning applications Refs. SP17/00113/SCC and SP17/00118/SCC subject to conditions⁵ as set out in the respective Officer reports.

Dustin Lees 6 July 2017

⁵ And subject to a s106 legal agreement in the case of planning application Ref. SP17/00118/SCC

Page 6	3
--------	---



Dustin Lees EI

From:

Dawes, Geoff < G.Dawes@spelthorne.gov.uk>

Sent:

30 June 2017 16:35

To:

Simon Elson EI

Cc:

Walker, Kelly; Dustin Lees EI

Subject:

Stanwell Quarry Stanwell Moor Road Stanwell

Simon

Following our recent conversation I have been looking into this case a bit more and now have serious reservations about the whole proposal.

I visited the site this afternoon and it is clear that no attempt has been made to implement any of the restoration proposals in the southern part of the site. Given that the whole site was supposed to have been completed last year so that, at long last, some benefits for the local community would be delivered by way of public access and nature conservation, such lack of progress is not acceptable. I can only assume that there has been absolutely no positive management within the southern part of this site over the last five years. Please correct me if I am wrong.

I consider this represents a total disregard for the views of this authority and the expectations of residents when the scheme was formally approved six years ago. It is also very disappointing to find that Surrey has allowed matters to progress so far without taking more formal action sooner to ensure that CEMEX was delivering its obligations. It seems that the whole operation has concentrated on the unauthorised expansion of the site and the scale of the recycling facilities with very little or no regard to the obligations set out in the planning permission or legal agreement.

One of the reasons why Spelthorne did not object to the original scheme, in spite of its Green Belt location, was the clear understanding that the recycling facility was necessary to generate material to ensure the full restoration of the site with a specific, reasonably short, timeframe. From the planning statement it becomes clear that CEMEX have entered into an arrangement with Heathrow and the recycling operation seems to be much more about facilitating their operational needs rather than restoring the site.

The case for very special circumstances does not appear to be particularly compelling and could be advanced for any recycling activity in the Green Belt. Given that the function of the recycling facility appears to have moved away from its primary purpose of restoring the site, I think the justification to continue this extended operation in the Green Belt would need to be a lot stronger if it is to overcome the clear policy objections to this activity.

The current Government consultation on the Airports National Policy Statement identifies a red line boundary for the land required to implement the Airport Masterplan. Whilst it is highly likely that this boundary may change as the preferred scheme is developed for the Development Consent Order application, it is clear that the future use of the whole site, apart from the southern nature conservation area, could be used for airport parking. CEMEX have frequently promoted the site as being suitable for airport related development. If this is the case, none of the future benefits being offered in this current proposal will be deliverable!

I attach a link to the latest available plan.

https://your.heathrow.com/takingbritainfurther/vision/maps-technical-information/

This proposal needs to be seen in the context of the original joint proposals for Hithermoor and Stanwell. That was all about getting better restoration of both sites and satisfying very special circumstances in the Green Belt. Although the joint proposals could not, in the end, be delivered I consider the range of issues and ultimately the concessions we gained from Bretts from the ten year permission we granted at Hithermoor for the recycling facility were significant. I find it incredible that CEMEX are just expecting us to agree this new proposal on the back

of having done nothing so far to suggest that they have the will to deliver any benefits in the short term, let alone the long term.

As usual the community is being expected to wait longer for any benefits!

We look forward to your comments and would welcome the opportunity to discuss the proposals in more detail.

Regards

Geoff

Geoff Dawes Principal Planning Officer

Spelthorne Borough Council Council Offices Knowle Green Staines TW18 1XB Tel: 01784 446397

Spelthorne Means Business

Disclaimer

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use by the recipient and others authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution or taking action in relation of the contents of this information is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful.

This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived by **Mimecast Ltd**, an innovator in Software as a Service (SaaS) for business. Providing a **safer** and **more useful** place for your human generated data. Specializing in; Security, archiving and compliance. To find out more <u>Click Here</u>.



Dustin Lees EI

From: Helen Hudson < helen.hudson@ext.cemex.com>

 Sent:
 06 July 2017 11:23

 To:
 Dustin Lees EI

 Cc:
 Andrew Scott

Subject: Re: FW: Stanwell Quarry Stanwell Moor Road Stanwell

Dear Mr Lees

I am writing in response to the comments made by Geoff Dawes from Spelthorne Borough Council. The key comments made by the officer are that:

- i) there has been little progress with the site restoration since planning permission was granted in 2011 and that a further extension in the restoration scheme will delay public access and benefit of the site for a further period.
- ii) there is concern about the justification for the recycling operation in this green belt location; and
- iii) there is doubt about the delivery of the scheme because of future proposals at Heathrow Airport.

Restoration Progress

The application SP17/00118/SCC is to extend the time taken for restoration until 26th October 2027 i.e. by some ten years. The current permission SP10/0594 requires restoration of the quarry to be complete by 26th October 2017 with a 25 year long term management plan and aftercare covering some 7.1 hectares of the overall site.

Restoration of the quarry has progressed since planning permission was granted in 2011 for the aggregate recycling operation with some 105,000 cubic metres of-inert material having been used to infill the eastern and central parts of the site. Some additional 115,000 cubic metres is required to fully restore the site as shown on the revised restoration plan. Restoration has taken longer than the original 6 years identified as the recycling aggregate operation has been able to deliver high rates of recycling and recovery than originally anticipated. The material attracted to the site means that recovery is high with around 85% of material being able to be taken off site for re-use. Based on 2015-2016 some 17,000 tonnes of residual material were available for void space infill. Based on the 2015-2016 rate this will require up to an additional 10 years of recycling activity to complete the restoration scheme.

The restoration and aggregate recycling applications seek to extend the restoration period by up to ten years in order to complete the restoration and also offer an enhanced scheme with a long term management plan covering a significantly larger area than previously offered. In order to off set the retention of the aggregate recycling plant for an extended temporary period and the delay in the final restoration of the whole site CEMEX is offering an enhanced restoration scheme secured by a revised 25 year long term management plan and aftercare scheme covering a much larger area of the site - some 15 hectares of the site. The enhanced restoration scheme offers new public footpaths, improved parkland and garden landscaping, historic referencing and maintenance of historic built structures and increased biodiversity.

Up until now there has been no public access to the former Stanwell Quarry site as the whole site is regarded by CEMEX as an active site and so public access has not been provided on health and safety grounds. However, CEMEX recognises that this application seeks to delay final restoration of the quarry for up to an additional ten years, but that this delay largely relates to the northern part of the site - occupied by the aggregate recycling operations. CEMEX are therefore proposing to release parts of the site in the south for public access within the next five years.

Plan P5/227/7A submitted as part of the applications shows the different phases of restoration. The eastern and north western parts of the quarry have largely been restored with Phase 1A in the east having been restored and is now in aftercare. Phase 1B has been restored to agriculture, but the current landform needs regrading to meet the levels set out in the enhanced restoration scheme. IC in the south has also been restored but required management of the vegetation and repair of the built structures. Overall the reinstatement of the former quarry is expected to be complete by 26th October 2027 - the last area to be restored will be the aggregate recycling areas 3A and 3B, but it is anticipated that Phase 1 and those within the southern half of the former quarry site - 1C, 1D, 2A, 2B and 2C can be delivered into aftercare within the next 5 years so that parts of the site may start to be opened up to the public for access sooner rather than later. If planning permission is granted it is noted that a condition is recommended requiring submission of a progressive restoration plan with detailed timescales for each respective restoration phase of the site. CEMEX has no objection to this condition.

Overall, CEMEX consider that the delayed overall restoration scheme by 10 years predominately relates to the

northern part of the site, occupied by the aggregate recycling operations and that within the next five years the southern half of the site will be restored and public access made available to this area.

Justification for the Aggregate Recycling Operation Green Belt

The justification for the retention of the aggregate recycling operation for a further period of up to ten years is to enable the restoration of the former quarry site to be completed, but also to assist in funding an enhanced restoration scheme which offers significant parkland landscape benefits with improved references to the former historic Stanwell Place house and provides for maintenance and restoration of former historic parkland and garden features which previously were not able to be delivered.

The enhanced restoration scheme also offers considerable benefits to biodiversity, habitat quality of the site and local biodiversity. The site also includes additional public access.

The retention and operation of the aggregate recycling operation for a longer period of time will also mean that CEMEX is able to offer and fund the 25 year management plan to a significantly larger area than previously secured through planning permission SP10/0594 i.e 15 hectares as opposed to 7.1 hectares previously agreed in the S106.

Overall it is considered that the retention of the aggregate recycling operation in this Green Belt location for a further temporary period is justified based on very special circumstances which are made up of a number of considerations. Firstly there is a need for aggregate recycling facilities in Surrey and in particular in this NW Surrey area. Also the site contributes to Surrey's aggregate recycling targets and there is a lack of alternative non Green Belt sites for aggregate recycling which can contribute to these targets. The site is well located to sources for waste arising around west London and NW Surrey and in particular Heathrow Airport which generates significant amounts of aggregate for recycling, reducing the distances for the transport of waste. The particular characteristics of the former Stanwell quarry site also contribute to this being a suitable location for this facility for an additional temporary period i.e. in close proximity to the motorway network, close proximity to waste arisings and aggregate re-use locations, away from residential properties, in a high background noise environment, on a site which is not fully restored, but whose activities can assist in providing suitable restoration materials and soils. Finally justification is based on the wider environmental and economic benefits of this sustainable form of waste management and from the significant further restoration enhancements and benefits.

Heathrow Airport Expansion

CEMEX note the point made by the officer that part of the northern, western and eastern parts of the site have been included by Heathrow Airport Limited as parking in their draft Heathrow Airport Expansion plans. However, these airport proposals are draft and have a significant consultation and scrutiny process to go through yet. No planning application or development consent order have been made or granted. CEMEX propose to fully restore the site as set out in application - SP17/00118/SCC. Any future proposal by Heathrow Airport Ltd would have to consider the loss of this enhanced restored land to the environment and local community, if permitted.

Please call me if you require any clarification on the above.

Kind regards

Helen Hudson

Consultant Planner - National Reserves Department - United Kingdom Office : (01932)583639 , Fax: (01932)568933 , Mobile: 07702314652

Address: CEMEX HOUSE, Coldharbour Lane, Thorpe, Egham, Surrey TW20 8TD

e-Mail: helen.hudson@ext.cemex.com

www.cemex.co.uk

Think before printing. The environment is in our hands.

This email message and any attachments are for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and contain confidential and/or privileged information. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply email and destroy all copies of the original message and any attachments. Thank you.

UPDATE SHEET 2

Planning Applications Refs. SP17/00113/SCC and SP17/00118/SCC

Stanwell Quarry, Stanwell Moor Road, Stanwell, Surrey TW19 6AB

Non-compliance with Conditions 1 and 2 of planning permission ref. SP10/0594 dated 26 October 2011 in order to extend the time taken for restoration until 26 October 2027 and to change the restoration and phasing plans previously approved (Ref. SP17/00118/SCC).

Retention of an existing recycling operation on a site of some 5.3ha for the processing of construction and demolition waste for the production of restoration materials for use in the former Stanwell Quarry and recycled aggregates for export for a period of 10 years with restoration of the recycling site to agriculture.

1. Members will note that the County Planning Authority (CPA) received Spelthorne Borough Council's formal consultation response on 11 July. The Borough Council has raised objection to both applications as follows:

"None of the items put forward as the reason not to object to planning application ref 08/00337/SBC have been achieved, namely: 1) A strict time limited final restoration date for the overall Stanwell Quarry site. 2) Securing parkland and nature conservation restoration of the western and southern parts of the overall Stanwell Quarry site; and 3) Public access to the areas referred to in (2) by creating a network of permissive paths through the overall Stanwell Quarry Site.

However if SCC are minded to approve the application, then SBC shall be involved at an early stage in discussions with the new S106 Agreement to ensure the provision of tangible development on the ground, in recognition of the commitment made in 2011 to restore the site by 2017."

- 2. In addition to the above, on 10 July the Pollution Control Officer at the Borough wrote to the CPA expressing concern about the dust and noise impacts of restoration works in the south of the quarry adjacent to residential properties.
- 3. **Annex C** attached provides a copy of the Borough Council's objection letters and a copy of the email sent by the Pollution Control Officer.
- 4. Officers consider that the relevant committee reports associated with applications adequately address the reasons for the delay in completion of restoration works and the need for the retention of the existing recycling facility.
- 5. In recognition of the need to secure completion of restoration works as soon as possible Officers have recommended that a condition be imposed on any consent granted in respect of application Ref. SP17/00118/SCC to secure a timed restoration phasing plan. This would allow the effective monitoring of phased restoration works and enforce the same if considered necessary and expedient.
- Officers consider that the amended restoration scheme proposed together with a significantly larger 25-year management plan area would be of greater benefit to the local community and environment than that previously approved. Officers also consider that the extended management area and enhanced restoration scheme a

- compensate for the delay in fully restoring the quarry within previously approved timescales.
- 7. The CPA will be willing to engage and consult the Borough Council in respect of the proposed 25-year management plan to be secured through a s106 legal agreement.
- 8. In respect of restoration works in the south of the quarry Officers note that these activities are controlled by an Environmental Permit issued by the Environment Agency¹. A copy of an extract from this permit is provided at **Annex D**.
- 9. Paragraph 122 of the National Planning Policy Framework advises that when considering development proposals the CPA should focus on whether the development itself is an acceptable use of the land, and the impact of the use, rather than the control of processes or emissions themselves where these are subject to approval under pollution control regimes. The CPA should assume that these regimes will operate effectively.
- 10. In this case any dust or noise generated as a result of landfilling/restoration works to the south of the quarry would be controlled by the applicant's Environmental Permit.
- 11. Having regard to the above, Officers maintain their recommendations to permit planning applications Refs. SP17/00113/SCC and SP17/00118/SCC subject to conditions² as set out in the respective Officer reports.

Dustin Lees 12 July 2017

¹ See Section 3.3 in respect of dust and Section 3.5 in respect of noise

² And subject to a s106 legal agreement in the case of planning application Ref. SP17/00118/SCC

ANNEXC



Please reply to:

c/o Helen Hudson

Cemex UK Operations Ltd.

Cemex House
Coldharbour Lane

Thorpe Egham TW20 8TP Contact:

Kelly Walker

Department:

Planning & Housing Strategy

Service:

Planning (Development Management)

Direct line:

01784 446348

Fax:

01784 463356

E-mail:

planningdm@spelthorne.gov.uk

Our ref:

KEW/17/00113/SCC

Date:

11 July 2017

Dear Sir / Madam

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACTS 1990

PROPOSAL: Retent

Retention of an existing recycling operation for the processing of construction and demolition waste for the production of restoration materials for use in the former Stanwell Quarry site and recycled aggregates for export for a period of 10

years with restoration to agriculture

AT:

Stanwell Recycling Stanwell Quarry Stanwell Moor Road Stanwell Staines-upon-

Thames TW19 7NY

I refer to the Consultation from your Authority relating to the above proposal.

I would inform you that this matter has now been fully considered by this Council when it was resolved that:-

That Surrey County Council be advised that this Council strongly objects to the proposal in particular given that none of the items put forward as the reason not to object to planning application ref 08/00337/SBC have been achieved, namely,

- 1) A strict time limited final restoration date for the overall Stanwell Quarry site.

Public access to the areas referred to in (2) by creating a network of permissive paths through the overall Stanwell Quarry Site. The Council also raises concern in relation to the expansion of the operation and site area. However if SCC are minded to approve the application, then SBC shall be involved at an early stage in discussions with the new S106 Agreement to ensure the provision of tangible development on the ground, in recognition of the commitment made in 2011 to restore the site by 2017'.

Yours faithfully

EJSputs

Planning Development Manager

MISOBZ

Spelthorne Borough Council, Council Offices, Knowle Green, Staines-upon-Thames, TW18 1XB www.spelthorne.gov.uk

Page	1	4
------	---	---





Surrey County Council

County Hall Penrhyn Road

Kingston Upon Thames

KT1 2DN

Please reply to:

Contact:

Kelly Walker

Department:

Planning & Housing Strategy

Service:

Planning (Development Management)

Direct line:

01784 446348

Fax:

01784 463356

E-mail:

planningdm@spelthorne.gov.uk

Our ref:

KEW/17/00118/SCC

Date:

11 July 2017

Dear Sir / Madam

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACTS 1990

PROPOSAL:

Non-compliance with conditions 1 and 2 of planning permission ref: SP10/0594 dated 26 October 2011 in order to extend the time taken for restoration until 26 October 2027 and to change the restoration and phasing plans previously

approved.

AT:

Stanwell Quarry Stanwell Moor Road Stanwell Staines-upon-Thames TW19 7NY

I refer to the Consultation from your Authority relating to the above proposal.

I would inform you that this matter has now been fully considered by this Council when it was resolved that:-

That Surrey County Council be advised that this Council strongly objects to the proposal in particular given that none of the items put forward as the reason not to object to planning application ref 08/00337/SBC have been achieved, namely,

- 1) A strict time limited final restoration date for the overall Stanwell Quarry site.
- 2) Securing parkland and nature conservation restoration of the western and southern parts of the overall Stanwell Quarry site
- 3) Public access to the areas referred to in (2) by creating a network of permissive paths through the overall Stanwell Quarry Site. However if SCC are minded to approve the application, then SBC shall be involved at an early stage in discussions with the new S106 Agreement to ensure the provision of tangible development on the ground, in recognition of the commitment made in 2011 to restore the site by 2017'.

Yours faithfully

EJSONES

Planning Development Manager

MISOBZ

Spelthorne Borough Council, Council Offices, Knowle Green, Staines-upon-Thames, TW18 1XB www.spelthorne.gov.uk

Page	1	6
------	---	---



Dustin Lees EI

From:

Walker, Kelly < K.Walker@spelthorne.gov.uk>

Sent:

10 July 2017 13:28 Dustin Lees EI

To: Subject:

FW: SP17/00118/SCC - Stanwell Quarry

FYI

From: Flint, Olivia

Sent: 10 July 2017 11:48

To: Walker, Kelly < K. Walker@spelthorne.gov.uk>
Subject: SP17/00118/SCC - Stanwell Quarry

Kelly,

Application documents

It is understood that application SP17/00118/SCC is for non-compliance with conditions 1 and 2 of PP SP10/0594 of October 2011 to extend restoration until October 2027 and change the restoration and phasing plans previously approved. Condition 1 required restoration to be completed not later than 6 years from the permission (i.e. October 2017) and Condition 2 related to the restoration and phasing plan details.

Application documents detail that since 2011 some 105,000 cu.m of material has been placed for restoration, but less than anticipated due to enhanced recovery of processed materials than originally anticipated. The Planning Statement outlines the proposals for each Phase. Section 7.10 of the Planning Statement outlines that the applicant does not envisage that dust or noise would be a problem during reinstatement of the site. It lists only three outline dust control measures, namely suspension of soil handling during dry and wind conditions; maximum limits of soil storage prior to placement and seeding of soil mounds. It goes on to state that during infilling operations noise levels should not exceed 55 dB Laeq with temporary operations including soil replacement not exceeding 70 dB Laeq.

Phases 2A and 2B are located adjacent to housing on the southern boundary of the application site. Phase 2A is given to have been partly filled, but requires additional materials to complete filling and restoration to arable and woodland. Phase 2B requires infilling, followed by restoration to parkland. There is no discussion in the application documents about the distances to noise and dust sensitive properties on this boundary. I have previously reviewed application 17/00113/SCC, for retention of the recycling operation for an additional ten year period to produce restoration materials for Stanwell Quarry, which was supported by an air quality assessment prepared by Environmental Assessment Ltd (Jan 2017). This however related only to the smaller red line area of the recycling operations and was based on distances of >300-350m to the nearest residential properties. Filling at Phases 2A and 2B will come within 5-10m of the southern boundary of the application site with residential housing immediately adjacent.

With respect to noise levels it is not clear whether any monitoring is proposed to evidence noise levels being beneath these thresholds, nor how enforceable this commitment is in the event of noise complaints – where would the 55 dB Laeq threshold apply; at the source, at the application boundary, at the landownership boundary or at the façade of the nearest noise sensitive receptor?

Relevant Planning Guidance

Under the heading 'Facilitating the sustainable use of minerals', the NPPF states:

"When determining planning applications, local planning authorities should:

- ensure, in granting planning permission for mineral development, that there are no unacceptable adverse impacts
 on the natural and historic environment, human health or aviation safety, and take into account the cumulative effect
 of multiple impacts from individual sites and/or from a number of sites in a locality; and
- ensure that any unavoidable noise, dust and particle emissions and any blasting vibrations are controlled, mitigated or removed at source...".

The NPPF is supported by the national Planning Practice Guidance (nPPG), including sections focusing on both air quality generally and minerals specifically The Minerals section of the nPPG provides the principles to be followed in considering the environmental effects of surface mineral workings and states that:

"Where dust emissions are likely to arise, mineral operators are expected to prepare a dust assessment study, which should be undertaken by a competent person/organisation with acknowledged experience of undertaking this type of work."

It is unclear whether a minerals dust assessment has been undertaken in relation to this planning application, or whether there is an existing Dust Action Plan that applies to the whole site (i.e. including both the recycling operations and the landfill being filled/ restored. If such an assessment has previously been undertaken and or a Dust Plan is in place, it is not referred to within the application documents and therefore no consideration has been demonstrated of how revised restoration proposals could impact on the validity of the assessment/ plan. It is noted that there are no conditions relating to dust or noise on the decision notice of permission SP10/0594. The basic good practice measures that should be applied to design and operational phases of the scheme, in accordance with the IAQM (May 2016 v1.1) Guidance on the Assessment of Mineral Dust Impacts for Planning, should go beyond the three vague bullet points included within the Planning Statement.

In conclusion, I am therefore concerned that the amenity of residential properties on the southern boundary, particularly in proximity to Phases 2A and 2B, could be unacceptably impacted by dust and noise nuisance as the applicant has not demonstrated that good practice guidance has been adhered to.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any queries with respect to these comments.

Kind regards, Olivia

Olivia Flint Principal Pollution Control Officer

Spelthorne Borough Council,

Council Offices, Knowle Green, Staines-upon-Thames, TW18 1XB Tel: 01784 446 259

Olivia's working hours are Monday, Wednesday and Friday 08.30 – 17.30; and Tuesday and Thursday 09.30 – 14.30. Outside of these hours, if your query is urgent, please telephone our support team on 01784 446 251. For non-urgent queries please re-direct your email to pollution.control@spelthorne.gov.uk.

Spelthorne Means Business

Disclaimer

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use by the recipient and others authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution or taking action in relation of the contents of this information is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful.

This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived by **Mimecast Ltd**, an innovator in Software as a Service (SaaS) for business. Providing a **safer** and **more useful** place for your human generated data. Specializing in; Security, archiving and compliance. To find out more <u>Click Here</u>.

ANNEX D



Permit with introductory note

Pollution Prevention and Control (England & Wales) Regulations 2000

Stanwell III Landfill

CEMEX UK Materials Ltd Stanwell Moor Road Stanwell Staines Surrey TW19 6AB

Permit number VP3030LV

Permit Number: VP3030LV

Issued: 10/08/2006

Stanwell III Landfill

3. Emissions and monitoring

3.1 Emissions to water, air or land

3.1.1 There shall be no point source emissions to water, air or land

3.2 Emissions to groundwater

- 3.2.1 There shall be no emission from the activities into groundwater of any substance in List I (as defined by the Groundwater Regulations) contrary to those Regulations.
- 3.2.2 There shall be no emission from the activities into groundwater of any substance in List II (as defined in the Groundwater Regulations) so as to cause pollution (as defined in those Regulations).
- 3.2.3 The trigger levels for emissions into groundwater for the parameter(s) and monitoring point(s) set out in schedule 4 table \$4.1 of shall not be exceeded.
- 3.2.4 The operator shall submit to the Agency a review of the Hydrogeological Risk Assessment:
 - (a) between 9 and 6 months prior to the fourth anniversary of the granting of the permit, and
 - (b) between 9 and 6 months prior to every subsequent 4 years after the fourth anniversary of the granting of the permit.

3.3 Fugitive emissions of substances

- 3.3.1 Fugitive emissions of substances (excluding odour, noise and vibration) shall not cause pollution. The operator shall not be taken to have breached this condition if appropriate measures have been taken to prevent or where that is not practicable, to minimise, those emissions.
- 3.3.2 Litter or mud arising from the activities shall not cause pollution. The operator shall not be taken to have breached this condition if appropriate measures have been used to prevent or where that is not practicable to minimise, the litter and mud.
- 3.3.3 Litter or mud arising from the activities shall be cleared from affected areas outside the Site as soon as practicable.
- 3.3.4 All flquids, whose emission to water or land could cause pollution, shall be provided with secondary containment, unless the operator has used other appropriate measures to prevent or where that is not practicable, to minimise, leakage and spillage from the primary container.
- 3.3.5 The limits for landfill gas set out in schedule 4, table S4.2, shall not be exceeded.

Permit Number: VP3030LV Page 5

Issued: 10/08/2006

Stanwell III Landfill

ANNEXD

3.4 Odour

3.4.1 Emissions from the activities shall be free from odour at levels likely to cause annoyance outside the Site, as perceived by an authorised officer of the Agency, unless the operator has used appropriate measures to prevent or where that is not practicable to minimise the odour.

3.5 Noise and vibration

3.5.1 Emissions from the Activities shall be free from noise and vibration at levels likely to cause annoyance outside the site, as perceived by an authorised officer of the Agency, unless the operator has used appropriate measures to prevent or where that is not practicable to minimise the noise and vibration.

3.6 Monitoring

- 3.6.1 The operator shall, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Agency, undertake the monitoring for the parameters, specified in the following tables in schedule 4 to this permit:
 - (a) Groundwater specified in tables S4.1 and S4.5:
 - (b) Landfill gas specified in tables \$4.2 and \$4.3;
 - (c) Surface water specified in table S4.4.
- 3.6.2 The operator shall maintain records of all monitoring required by this permit including records of the taking and analysis of samples, instrument measurements (periodic and continual), calibrations, examinations, tests and surveys and any assessment or evaluation made on the basis of such data.
- 3.6.3 A topographical survey of the site referenced to Ordnance Datum shall be carried out:
 - (a) annually, and
 - (b) prior to the disposal of waste in any new cell or new development area of the landfill, and
 - (c) following closure of the landfill or part of the landfill.

The topographical survey shall be used to produce a plan of a scale adequate to show the surveyed features of the site.

3.7 Transfers off-site

3.7.1 Records of all the wastes sent off site from the activities, for either disposal or recovery, shall be maintained.

Permit Number: VP3030LV Page 6

Issued: 10/08/2006

Stanwell III Landfill

Page	22
------	----